
 
 
 

Mr S Hearse 
Interim Head of Paid Service 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

Date: 17 July 2020 

 

FULL COUNCIL MEETING 

On: Monday 27 July 2020 At: 6.30 pm 

Venue: Virtual meeting via Zoom 

 
Temporary measures during the Coronavirus Pandemic: 

Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in the public forum are advised that 
all Council meetings taking place during the Covid-19 Pandemic will be filmed for live or 
subsequent broadcast via the YouTube channel - https://tinyurl.com/TorridgeYouTube 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

You are hereby summoned to the Meeting of the District Council at the aforementioned date and time 
 

 
 

Interim Head of Paid Service  

 

To: Councillor D Brenton (Chair) 
Councillor P Christie (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: R Boughton, C Bright, M Brown, D Bushby, M Clarke, C Cottle-
Hunkin, R Craigie, A Dart, L Ford, J Gubb, P Hackett, P Hames, S Harding, 
C Hawkins, K Hepple, R Hicks, C Hodson, D Hurley, J Hutchings, T Inch, 
K James, D Jones, S Langford, N Laws, C Leather, R Lock, J Manley, 
D McGeough, J McKenzie, S Newton, P Pennington, G Rossi, P Watson and 
R Wiseman 

Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
 

PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from the meeting 
 



 
 

 

2.   Public Contributions  

 15 minute period for public contributions.  (The deadline for registering  to speak is by 
2pm Thursday 23 July 2020. To register please email dem.services@torridge.gov.uk). 
 

3.   Declarations of interest  

 Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the 
nature of their interest when the item is being discussed. 
 

4.   Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II  

5.   Urgent Matters Brought Forward with the Permission of the the Chair  

6.   Future High Street Fund (Pages 4 - 54) 

 To receive the report of the Planning & Economy Manager 
 

7.   Notices of Motion  

(a)   Written Notice of Motion from Councillor McGeough  

 Given the strong feeling from the recent C and R committee combined with petitions 
from the public and representations from local businesses, I propose that TDC 
introduce free car parking for the first one or two hours in some or all of the car parks 
in Bideford, Holsworthy and Torrington town centres for a period of two months in 
order to further help traders during this pandemic crisis . This measure to be 
implemented as soon as is possible. How the cost for this will be met is to be decided 
by members considering - but not limited to - reviewing the capital project and/or 
rebalancing current car parking tariffs." 

 

(b)   Written Notice of Motion from Councillor Hames  

 Given the significant increase in people cycling to work and for leisure during the 
present health crisis and recognising the shortage of safe cycling routes in Torridge I 
propose that this Council works with the County Council, parishes, One Northern 
Devon  and other community groups to encourage safe cycling and to identify and 
promote  suitable  cycle routes. 
 

8.   Exclusion of Public  

 The Chair to move: 
 
“That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972” 
 

9.   PART II - (CLOSED SESSION)  

  
Items which may be taken in the absence of the public and press on the grounds that 
exempt information may be disclosed. 
 

mailto:dem.services@torridge.gov.uk


 
 

 

10.   Major Contracts Update  

 To receive a verbal update from the Interim Head of Paid Service 
 

11.   Statutory Officer Role (Pages 55 - 56) 

 To receive the report of the Leader of the Council 
 

 Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services 
 

 



REPORT OF  Planning and Economy Manager 

To: Full Council 

Subject: Future High Street submission for Bideford 

Date: 27th July, 2020 Reference:  

 
 
 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT:     

To outline the proposals for Torridge District Councils Final Submission for the 
Future High Street Fund Submission to the Ministry of Housing Community Local 
Government for the regeneration of Bideford Town Centre.   
 
To request Full Council‟s commitment to the proposal and to agree to support the co-
funding requirements. 
 

 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 

 
Bideford is one of the final 101 towns through to the final phase of the Future High Street 

Fund, a £1billion government town centre regeneration programme. This fund‟s importance 

has now been increased as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, with the government 

emphasising that this will be the main form of recovery investment to town centres. Direct 

conversations with the Ministry for Housing, Community and Local Government (MHCLG) 

have made it clear that a town the size of Bideford would be appropriate to be seeking a 

maximum of £5million. Full submission is required by 31st July. 

 

There are 3 clear gateway criteria that the fund requires. 

1) Investment will achieve at least a 2:1 Benefit Cost Ratio. Without that economic 

figure the bid will not be considered for appraisal except in exceptional 

circumstances. This figure will set the potential financial requirement and request 

from the fund. 

2) Strategic fit – How our proposal to develop and regenerate the identified site links to 

the objectives of the FHSF and how this intervention will lead to the regeneration of 

the Town Centre 

3) Deliverability – The FHSF represents one element of the funding commitment to the 

project and we need to demonstrate commitment and support from other funding 

sources, including TDC, to demonstrate that the project can be delivered. 

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



As part of the Deliverability criteria it is essential that the submitting authority (Torridge 

District Council) formally indicates its commitment to the project and to the provision of co-

funding. 

 

2. REPORT 

 

The Scheme being presented to MHCLG for our FHSF Bid, comprises the 

redevelopment of an under-utilised part of Bideford Town Centre that is situated close 

to Jubilee Square. 

 

The area, which for the purposes of this report and the FHSF submission, we refer to 

as Isaac’s Yard, presents a once-in-a-generation opportunity for Bideford with knock-

on positive implications for the wider region.  

 

This area comprises Heard Brothers Garage, which fits between Cooper Street, Mill Street, 

Bridgeland Street and Queen Street, and is the largest single developable space within the 

town centre. It will involve repurposing what is currently a decaying car graveyard into an 

inspirational, enjoyable new anchor attraction as the town shifts away from a pure retail 

focus.  

Page 5



 

 

  

 

Page 6



  

 

  

 

The project has a series of key objectives developed in partnership with the public-private 

Governance Board that was created at the outset of the project. This Governance Board 

includes Councillor Bushby and Councillor Hicks, the Interim Head of Paid Service, the 

Planning and Economy Manager, Economic Development Officer, Estates Manager, 

Bideford Town Council Member representation and Clerk, President of the Bideford Bay 

Chamber of Commerce, Chair of Bideford Town Centre Partnership, an experienced retail 

consultant, Space* youth leader and local business representation.  

 

These objectives stem from local priorities and strategies, as well as based upon national 

studies. 

 To transform the town centre into a place the community can be proud of 

 To develop a town that people want to experience, be part of and recommend to 

others 

 To increase and improve residential spaces in the town centre in order to promote 

security and a stronger night time economy 

 To address underlying deprivation issues and boost aspiration 

 To establish environmental principles at the heart of Bideford and its community  

Page 7



Progress so far 

MHCLG provided a Development Grant to support the development of high quality Business 

Case development, which has been used to prepare our funding bid through a variety of 

routes, including consultation, architectural design and specialist Business Case and 

economics input.  

 

Consultation and concept development 

 

 The preparation of a report following a group workshop by the Institute of Place 

Management to initiate the collective process of what is needed to regenerate 

Bideford Town Centre. The Institute of Place Management is part of Manchester 

Metropolitan University and are the government‟s key town centre advisers, who will 

be involved in the judging process for the Future High Street Fund) 

 Detailed community consultation, conducted by Onion Collective CIC, a not-for-profit 

community regeneration community with extensive consultation and project delivery 

experience.  

o Workshops with a variety of groupings, including local businesses, young 

entrepreneurs, Bideford College year 10 students, tourism, retailers, elected 

Members, charities, leisure providers and an open workshop. 

o The Findings of this work were focused on; 

 Lack of community bridging spaces 

 A lack of pride in the town as the town does not cater for enough of its 

actual community‟s needs 

 Limited “experience” offer yet real enjoyment of those events which do 

take place and are high quality  

 A real desire to engage more actively in activities and to feel more 

empowered 

 Lack of exciting / engaging town centre employment and residential 

opportunities (also highlighted through Indices of Multiple Deprivation / 

Bideford being a net exporter of workforce) 

o Full findings can be viewed at http://bit.ly/KnowingBideford . These were 

presented to, and endorsed by, Bideford Town Council and recommended 

that these underpin all regeneration efforts in the town. A Theory of Change 

(approved by Bideford Town Council) is included as Annex A. 

Page 8

http://bit.ly/KnowingBideford


 Discussions with key local bodies and projects, including the developer of Brunswick 

Wharf, in order to ensure that projects can collaborate and maximise impact rather 

than duplicate and undermine the financial viability of projects. 

 Initial agreement for site purchase (dependent on FHSF funding) agreed with the 

owner of the site.  

 Agreement has also been reached with the owner of a retail unit on Mill Street in 

order to provide 3 access points- Mill Street, Cooper Street and Queen Street. 

 Heads of Terms of Agreement for TDC to acquire these properties have been agreed 

between the parties, subject to receipt of funding from the FHSF, subject to contract 

and legal due diligence. 

 

Architectural design 

 

 A masterplanning exercise across the town was undertaken to create an options 

analysis, as per required for the Future High Street Fund. This confirmed that the 

Isaac‟s Yard was not only the best fit for the Fund but also that it held the most 

significant impact. 

 Responsive architectural work, stemming from the community engagement work. 

Two designs have now been undertaken, with feedback having been provided from a 

range of sources after the first design, including informal feedback from Historic 

England.  

 Following the first design there were concerns that we had created a strong Value for 

Money and Strategic Fit but that we were lacking on Deliverability. As such, and 

given the impact of the pandemic, we appointed igloo Regeneration to provide short-

term strategic development advice on Deliverability and, using their FCA-accredited 

investment arm, advice on suitable investment for the scheme. Igloo Regeneration 

were described by the United Nations as the world‟s first sustainable investor in real 

estate, and who are currently delivering landmark regeneration schemes in 

Newcastle, Sunderland and Swindon. Their involvement in this project gives 

substantial weight to its credibility. 

 

  

Page 9



Designs 

 

 

 

Page 10



 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 11



The project looks to create dynamic, flexible spaces which interact and create a multiplier 

effect rather than exist in isolation. The intention is for Isaac‟s Yard to ultimately be either 

wholly or partially in community ownership in the form of a Community Benefit Society 

(CBS), building pride and engagement. This will, however, be dependent upon creating 

financial returns for Torridge District Council to cover initial investment and also the 

establishment of a sustainable financial model for the community body which would enable it 

to continue to invest in wider regeneration across the town. Proposed uses for the site 

include; 

 be carbon neutral, with environmental principles at its core. 

 engaging co-working (G) and grow-on spaces (A, B and E, in total creating 695m2 of 

employment space across a broad range of uses) which will allow a generation who are now 

familiar with working from home to feel better-connected and networked at a time when 

expensive fixed offices are likely to decline. These interconnections have long been lacking 

in the town yet will also reduce the need for 34% of the district‟s working population to 

commute to outside of Torridge. More details available in Appendix B. 

 a community hub (F) driven by One Northern Devon (New Devon CCG / NHS), TTVS 

and 361 Energy which will foster community bridging, improve health and charitable 

coordination and address health deprivation in the town. In effect this will see the 

establishment of a dynamic space to build collaboration and address engrained deprivation 

issues, creating a significant multiplier effect in the sector. This will interact with, rather than 

be isolated from, the shared workspaces and cultural anchor. Proposals for this have been 

developed with CoLab in Exeter, a successful body who work in partnership with NHS and 

Public Health England as well as community and charitable organisations.  

 re-purpose the current garage building and celebrate its stunning „Belfast‟ roof to 

provide a covered events space as well as home for a vibrant food and drink incubation hub 

(I), improving the evening economy and providing a starter point for local entrepreneurs, 

adding churn and interest to the site. Not only will this connect the community to its 

agricultural heritage but also have a strong social and educational perspective, learning from 

projects such as Mercato Metropolitano.  This will be a managed facility to which access will 

be controlled in a safe and secure manner. 

 A vibrant, technology-savvy cultural anchor (J) to not only make people smile but 

also learn and keep coming back to the town in all weather conditions. Initial concepts 

involve the use of technologies such as Virtual and Augmented Reality, also creating links to 

both the educational and digital sectors in the town and wider region. However, technology 

will only be used to create impact and enhanced experiences rather than as a gimmick. 

 

Page 12



 16 new residential units, including 5 affordable homes, setting a new standard for 

town centre living in a ward ranked at 363 on Indices of Multiple Deprivation (2015) 

for Living Environment. More details available in Appendix C. 

 

 

 

 

 re-purpose a Grade II Listed Heritage Asset (5, Queen Street) in extremely poor 

condition with a view to it providing Temporary Accommodation for Torridge District Council 

and enable the private sector-led restoration of a Grade II* Listed building (28, Bridgeland 

Street). This regeneration will be funded from the sale by the owner of Heard Brothers 

Garage and will count as double-spend within our submission, strengthening the impact of 

MHCLG funding.  

 provide public access to, and control over, a heritage courtyard garden (hatched), 

currently closed-off and overgrown. This is a true oasis in the heart of the town which will 

come alive with a range of events. It will be essential to include a Yard Animator as part of 

the scheme, an individual to curate events and act as an introducer between businesses, 

cultural and community sector bodies to increase collaboration opportunities and 

efficiencies. 

 Support increased footfall and vibrancy to in turn benefit other key sites across the 

town, including Pannier Market, Bridge Buildings and Brunswick Wharf. 

 

 

Page 13



The project will be delivered on a phased basis over 4 years, bringing elements of the site 

back into public use from the summer of 2021. Throughout the build phase, expected to last 

until the end of 2023, we will seek to bring forward a series of additional projects, usually 

considered Meanwhile Uses, in neighbouring streets, in order to support the development of 

the ultimate site users. For example, the Devon Work Hubs programme is keen to fund up to 

£75,000 of capital costs to bring forward a temporary shared workspace. This represents an 

increase of £55,000 compared to their original support package for the proposed work hub in 

Bideford Town Hall (2019).   

 

 

Financial 

 

Objective 1- achieve a 2:1 Benefit- Cost Ratio 

 Financial modelling by Stantec, our appointed Business Case consultants, using the 

formulae provided by MHCLG, indicates that with a grant of £4.1 million our 

submission will pass the first Gateway Criteria of a 2:1 Benefit-Cost Ratio.    

 

Objective 2- create a Deliverable and viable financial model 

 The financial appraisals and modelling for the Final Submission to MHCLG are 

intrinsically lined to the whole Team have undertaken to produce a deliverable design 

based on market, economic, social and community demand.   

 The current financial appraisals indicate a Total Capital Cost Estimate of 

£9,645,570.00 

 The request to the FHSF is £4,286,917.  This is based on MHCLG‟s clear perimeters 

on what the fund can be used for. 

 This leaves a remaining balance estimate of £5,358,653 which will require funding 

support and commitment from TDC. 

 

Although the total co-funding requirement beyond the Future High Street Fund commitment 

is £5.4million, the implication of the phased development is that at no point should this full 

sum ever be required. Working phase by phase should allow elements of the project to be 

built-out and then activated, including early sections of residential sold, financing elements of 

the next part of the build process. The consultation work with igloo Regeneration has also 

indicated possibilities for off-site modular construction, not only creating cost and 

environmental gains but also creating less disruption within the town centre and creating a 

faster build-process. 

 

Page 14



Furthermore, this project meets a range of national strategic objectives, as well as local 

ones. This will ensure that the scheme will also be able to access additional funding from a 

range of potential sources. 

 

Post-pandemic funding opportunities are expected to focus on health, community and the 

environment, whilst also stimulating economic “levelling up” across the country. Isaac‟s Yard 

meets all of these criteria.  

 

Working with igloo Investment Management we have explored a variety of potential 

additional investment routes. Upon funding confirmation from MHCLG we will also 

immediately investigate additional funding routes through the following; 

 Homes England 

 NHS infrastructure investment 

 Public Health England 

 Devon Work Hubs (Devon County Council) 

 Historic England 

 Arts Council 

 

3. IMPLICATIONS 

 

Legal Implications 

 

Full procurement processes would need to be undertaken for the architectural and developer 

contracts. However, the Development Grant process leading to full submission has indicated 

that there is interest in these roles by the parties with whom we have worked so far. 

 

Legal Due Diligence, drafting and completion of the legal documentation associated with the 

acquisitions and regranted leases. 

 

Financial Implications 

 

 Temporary Accommodation savings – it is anticipated that elements of the existing 

property will be allocated for TDC Temporary Accommodation.  This would include 

initially, two residential units at the Mill Street Property and two at the refurbished 

Queen Street Property.  Calculations provided by accountancy demonstrates saving 

to TDC in using their own assets for the purpose as follows; 

 

Page 15



Financial Summary   
Annual Saving on current TA spend by placing into this 

property 

£26,319* 

Housing Benefit Annual Income (net of estimated Voids) £5,508* 

Income from Garage and Car Space Rental £1,200 

Estimated annual running cost for the property (£4,000) 

Indicative annual borrowing cost for the property (£21,600)** 

Net annual saving on Revenue Budget £7,427 

 

Revenue returns 

 The cashflow projections produced in the financial model, indicate that the scheme 

will be revenue producing surplus to borrowing by the end of 2029.  With a 

forecasted revenue stream in the region of £260,000.00 per annum, with a void 

estimate of 5%. 

  

Running Costs 

 It is intended that service charges are applied across the whole scheme to cover 

running costs and a sinking fund.  This will also include provision for Management, 

although the service for this may be derived from the in-house Estates team,  

supported by management fees incorporated in the service charges. 

 

Parking gains 

 Figures have been predicated upon a 5% increase in town centre footfall. Mapped 

out across Bideford‟s car park that would equate to £35,600.55 uplift in parking 

revenue (if taken from pre-Covid-19 trends).  

 

Business Rate gains 

 Business Rates are assessed with a Rateable Value broadly equivalent to the rental 

value assessed by the DV. Overall rental forecast is in the region of £260,000.00, so 

based on the business rates multiplier the rates payable is about 50% of that, but 

most of the occupants will be eligible for Small Business Rates Relief or may have 

charitable status and be eligible for a discount.  TDC are eligible for additional gap 

funding in this respect. 

 The rateable value for Heard Brothers Garage is currently £11,250 (rates payable 

£5613.75). However, no rates are currently paid due to Small Business Rate Relief. 

Page 16



 

Council Tax gains 

 Council Tax – Band C - £1,789.06 – per property = potentially £28.624.00 pa, plus 

any additional sums from Temporary Accommodation units 

 

Timescale for borrowing (based upon Public Works Loans Board) 

 As a Local Authority Land Owner our property investment commitments can be 

viewed on a short, medium or long term basis. Holding an asset in our own district 

provides advantages beyond those of an institutional investor and the benefits may 

not just be financial. 

 As this investment is within our own district, the performance is relevant over the 

longer term and hence timescale for borrowing can be in excess of 20 years, allowing 

Torridge District Council to benefit from income and capital growth, as well as the 

repayment of borrowings. 

 

Human Resources Implications 

 

Delivery of Isaac‟s Yard will require significant input from the Economic Development Officer, 

Economic Development Project Officer, Estates Manager and team. Ongoing recruitment 

considerations within the teams will take into consideration the necessary involvement in this 

project. 

 

An expert Development Manager will need to be appointed to ensure high quality delivery of 

the site. The costs for this have been included within the financial development appraisal. 

 

A Yard Animator, someone to actively manage the site and events taking place within and 

around it, will need appointing to curate life and ensure optimum operation of the site from 

the start of the Meanwhile uses. A site maintenance team will also need appointing. 

 

It is intended that the majority of the costs will be covered by service charges operating as 

part of the scheme. 

 

As a residential development in the heart of town there will also be Waste and Recycling 

implications, which will need taking into consideration as part of the design phase. 

 

Page 17



 

Sustainability/Biodiversity Implications 

 

Full biodiversity studies will need to be commissioned as part of the Planning process. Pre-

application engagement has already been undertaken with the Rural Community Energy 

Fund in order to develop a funded feasibility study into the use of Ground Source Heat 

Pumps and PV Solar in order to achieve a carbon neutral energy site, in line with Torridge 

District Council‟s Climate Emergency declaration. Sustainability factors will also be taken in 

to consideration when addressing construction methods to minimise the carbon footprint of 

construction. 

 

Equality/Diversity 

 

Isaac‟s Yard has equality and diversity at its heart, with the community hub playing a driving 

role to strengthen this across the town and wider area. Accessibility will need to be designed 

into the scheme, especially given the topography of the site. 

The events programme should also seek to be diverse and to support a broad range of 

demographics and elements of our community.  

 

Risk Management 

 

 Without the support of Members, Officers and Full Council, there is the key risk that 

Isaac‟s Yard will not receive the substantial amount of financial grant funding from 

the Future High Street Fund. 

 The nature of the scheme proposed seeks to mitigate the financial exposure of the 

Council to substantial amounts of financial risk.  The scheme seeks to achieve 

income and capital revenue from a number of sources across a number of use 

sectors, thereby spreading the risk.  The nature of some of the end users also 

increases the opportunity to obtain additional funding from other public sector 

sources whilst efforts to address deprivation and create sustainable environmental 

benefits should also create access to other funding sources. 

 The receipt of funding from the FHSF would enable the initial acquisition of the site 

and site enabling works.  Additional financial exposure can then be taken on 

measured against suitable levels of risk. 

Page 18



 There is an element of short-term risk for longer term gain. An example of the 

success of Caddsdown is the Council‟s commitment to a comprehensive scheme, 

which now offers a reputable business space opportunity which has consistently 

produced growing returns.  

 

There is also a significant reputational risk to Torridge District Council of being seen to not 

support regeneration or boost its local economy in the post-Covid-19 world. This submission 

has been based on detailed community and partner engagement and received hugely 

positive feedback (see example letters of support from Bideford Bay Chamber of Commerce 

and North Devon UNESCO Biosphere Reserve in Appendix D). 

 

A full Risk Register has been compiled for the submission. 

 

Compliance with Policies and Strategies 

 

This project delivers upon a significant range of local and national strategies as well as high-

level national studies.   

 Build Back Better, Grimsey Review Covid-19 supplement (June 2020)- delivering a 

vision of a town centre in a post-retail driven world. The Isaac‟s Yard project delivers on 

all 3 of the key core threads of localism, leadership and green spaces which delivers 

heavily on the experience economy as many people admit that we have reached “peak 

stuff”, in a society where ethics and environmental principles are coming a stronger part 

of decision-making. “The challenge of building back better isn’t about trying to restore 

outdated structures and propping up narrow vested interests. It’s about drawing up a new 

intergenerational contract between all communities and local and central government. 

Ultimately, though, it’s about a world beyond just retail” (page 21). 

 

 Sir John Timpson (2018) The High Street Report – our project directly responds to the 

recommendations of the High Streets Expert Panel, which state that “the town centre of 

the future should attract local people to take part in a variety of activities - including 

dining, leisure and sport, culture and the arts, entertainment, medical services, and many 

more uses”, such as business premises, offices and residential, including affordable 

housing. Our project also addresses the highlighted major obstacles that prevent 

communities from reshaping their towns “to provide spaces fit for the future”:  by bringing 

the community together through innovative consultation methods to discover a shared 

and central purpose; by bringing in specialist expertise in space design; by working 

closely with Planners to find imaginative solutions to site constraints; and through 

inspirational and forward-looking local leadership. 

 House of Commons, Housing, Communities & Local Government Select Committee 

(2019) High Streets & Town Centres in 2030 - our project supports the report‟s future 

Page 19



vision for town centres as “activity-based community gathering places where retail is a 

smaller part of a wider range of uses and activities and where green space, leisure, arts 

and culture and health and social care services combine with housing to create a space 

based on social and community interactions.”  The project also responds to the 

recommended means for „getting there‟: through a visionary strategy for the town centre 

which has the backing of the local community; through strong leadership and 

collaboration; through public intervention and resources to enable significant structural 

change; and through distinctive positioning/branding of the offer. 

 Mary Portas (2011) The Portas Review: An independent review of the future of our 

high streets – our project is inspired by the findings and recommendations of The Portas 

Review:  “My vision for the future of high streets is of multifunctional and social places 

which offer a clear and compelling purpose and experience that’s not available 

elsewhere, and which meet the interests and needs of the local people.” Our project 

supports the reports recommendations by developing a community-led and owned vision 

for the town centre; by collaborating to create an imaginative and unique new space, 

breathing new community and economic life into the town; by creating and investing in 

social capital to catalyse new economic capital; by creating new reasons to visit and 

spend time in the town; by encouraging and nurturing new food & drink traders and other 

start-up businesses in a vibrant town centre location; and by putting in place a visionary 

and strategic „Town Team‟ to lead the project. 

 Our project supports the aims of Government‟s Budget 2018: Our Plan for the High 

Street, by bringing in expert advice on helping high streets to adapt and thrive; by 

strengthening and creating new community assets; and by taking action to help the town 

centre transform and evolve to make it “fit for the future.” 

 House of Lords Select Committee on Regenerating Seaside Towns and 

Communities (2019) The Future of Seaside Towns – this project addresses many of 

the highlighted issues in this report and supports recommended actions associated with 

seaside and coastal towns through:  restoration and enhancement of the public realm and 

of cultural heritage assets that make the town unique through capital investment; 

diversification of the town‟s offer and economy through new cultural events, food and 

drink opportunities, and new business accommodation; enhanced digital connectivity 

within new business incubation accommodation; new high quality housing stock, including 

affordable housing; and enhanced health and wellbeing services delivered through a 

multi-agency partnership approach. 

 British-Irish  Parliamentary Assembly (2019) Final Report on The Revitalisation of 

the High Street – our project delivers a range of practical actions highlighted in this 

report that local government, business groups and communities can take to help the high 

street/town centre, including: setting out a clear long-term vision for the town centre; 

ensuring strong leadership and community buy-in; responding to changing shopping 

behavior and striking a new balance between retail and experiential attractions, including 

new leisure opportunities; delivering place making and public realm improvements to 

attract visitors and increase dwell time; and increasing access to the town centre and 

High Street. 

Page 20



 Our project supports Government‟s Industrial Strategy: Building a Britain fit for the 

future (2017) creating an incubation centre for the supported planning, start-up and 

growth of specialist food & drink businesses which aligns with the five foundations of 

productivity: ideas, people, infrastructure, business environment and places/prosperous 

communities; focusing on a local core strength and distinctive asset; and adding 

significant value to local agricultural output and produce.  

 This development also supports the Heart of the South West LEP’s Strategic 

Economic Plan 2014-2030 by (a) creating conditions for growth (through new „enterprise 

infrastructure‟, „stimulating enterprise and growth‟ and new „skills infrastructure & 

facilities‟); (b) maximising productivity & employment (through a new „strategic 

employment site‟ and support for „reaching new markets‟) and (c) capitalising on our 

distinctive assets (maximising the skills and employment opportunities aligned to 

transformational opportunities in our area). 

 Provide avenues to strengthen the Heart of the South West LEP’s Local Industrial 

Strategy’s ambition to further Digital Futures, including Big Data and environmental tech, 

in particular through a partnership with the North Devon UNESCO Biosphere Reserve‟s 

Digital Biosphere project. 

 Our project also supports national and regional health strategies with a 

health/community hub at its core delivering health and wellbeing support at the heart of a 

community with the third lowest life expectancy of all market towns in the county (Public 

Health Devon 2014, Joint Strategic Needs Assessment). The project supports Public 

Health England’s Strategy 2020-25 by working to narrow a recognised health gap, 

reduce inequalities, and prevent poor health through a joined-up place-based approach. It 

has adopted the recommendations of the Putting Health into Places (2019) report to co-

design health responses between the Local Authority, health authorities, voluntary sector 

and design professionals. 

 We are committed to a net zero-carbon development which is consistent with the UK 

Parliament, Devon County Council and Torridge District Council Climate Emergency 

Declarations (2019). Linked to these declarations, we support and are contributing to the 

development of a Devon Carbon Plan and are developing a Torridge Carbon, 

Environment & Biodiversity Plan. Additionally, the development will incorporate a 

range of sustainable features, including to reduce energy/water demand, improve 

energy/water efficiency, incorporate renewable and low carbon technologies, use of 

locally sourced and/or recycled construction materials where appropriate, to increase 

resilience to climate change, and to deliver net positive biodiversity gains.  

 Supports 4 of the 6 key priorities of the Northern Devon Economic Strategy (2014 – 

2020); 

o Priority 1- Investment in Place 

o Priority 2- Investment in People 

o Priority 3- Investment in Business and Enterprise 

o Priority 6- Investment in the development of future Growth Areas 

Page 21



 Delivers on all of the Northern Devon Tourism Strategy (2018-2022)‟s central facets- 

“Developing the tourism product”, “Engaging and connecting with visitors” and also 

“Developing capacity and capabilities”. 

Furthers the Digital Northern Devon Strategy (2018) by strengthening the digital maturity 

of northern Devon, harnessing the strategic priorities to “Deliver the right kind of economic 

growth” and “Unlocking potential through collaboration” whilst also furthering the need to 

“Get people digital”.  

 

Data Protection (GDPR) Implications 

 

No personal data is being collated / collected. 

 

Lead Member Views 

“This project needs to be at the heart of regeneration plans for Torridge District Council. 

Although the submission comes at a time of financial uncertainty we must ensure that we are 

in a position to maximise Recovery opportunities over the next 12 months. The Future High 

Street funding will enable us to attract additional investment into this scheme, for example 

from partners such as Homes England, enabling the delivery of a site with immense potential 

impact to create genuine economic and social transformation. The strong Revenue forecasts 

for the site, potential repayment window and mitigation of the phased build proposal mean 

that risk will be significantly reduced. This scheme will also be attractive to additional 

funders, again reducing the financial implications on Torridge District Council and bringing 

additional investment into the town. We should therefore look to wholeheartedly support this 

exciting opportunity for the District and region.” Councillor Robert Hicks, Lead Member for 

the Economy. 

 

Date of Consultation- 10.7.2020 

 

Ward Member Views 

 

Councillor Bushby 

“It gives me immense pleasure to write in support of my towns bid to the future high streets 

board. Our proposed development, known by its project name as “Issacs Yard”, will lead to a 

transformation of not only the town centre but of the whole of Bideford. 

Page 22



What has been really great to witness has been the coming together of the wider business 

community including the Bideford Bay Chamber of Commerce and the Town Centre 

Partnership as well as the local community itself. The enthusiasm from everyone involved 

has been excellent and if nothing comes from our bid the fact that we have found something 

to unite us as a community will be long lasting. A development of this nature in an area of 

the town rarely seen by anyone will add so much to the existing street scene and will give a 

much-needed boost to the economy of the whole town. 

Being a historic port town, development has been quite rightly very slow but the potential for 

this new development to really lift the fortunes of the area has not gone unnoticed and there 

is now a real buzz of expectancy around town. 

Being a North Ward Councillor and part of the team involved has been a privilege and I am 

confident that the future of our great town will be secured for future generations. 

Date of Consultation- 17.7.2020 

 

Councillor Christie 

“I see this scheme as an exciting development within the town centre of Bideford which, if it 

comes to fruition, should both enliven and reposition the town, both within northern Devon 

and on a national stage as a result of its innovative community and commercial scope.” 

Date of Consultation- 17.7.2020 

 

 

Councillor McGeough  

“It has been pleasure to have been a part of the High Street regeneration bid.  

My main priorities for supporting this are;  

 Addressing both deprivation and aspiration to drive economic growth and wellbeing, 

this is a major importance for our bid in my opinion.  

 Creating excitement and momentum for the town- a place where both residents and 

tourist want to spend time and can be proud of as we need to establish our sense of 

pride within our beautiful town again.  

 We need to be able to shift our focus from pure retail focus of the town, meeting the 

wider needs of our community, this will provide us with the wider regeneration that 

will enable us to deliver a lifeline for our Historic town which must be secured for its 

future history of which we are a part of.  

 The hard work that our officers and local partners have put in to produce to 

exemplary piece of work is very much astounding and gives Bideford a very strong 

chance to secure our bid for our town!  

Page 23



 Thank you to all involved and good luck.” 

Date of Consultation- 10.7.2020 

4. CONCLUSIONS 

The Future High Street Fund is one of the most significant regeneration opportunities 

for the District in a generation. Torridge District Council has the opportunity to share 

in the ownership, management and operation of this scheme going forward. 

The submission being prepared for the FHSF Bid could generate over 40% of the 

funding required for the Isaac‟s Yard project. This will generate additional momentum 

and funding for the scheme and attract wider investment into the town and 

surrounding community, whilst also stimulating efforts to address deprivation and skill 

shortages.  

We must therefore ensure that we maximise the opportunity with which we have 

been presented. 

In order to do this and make the Bid to the Future High Street Fund successful, we 

need Member commitment to the co-funding element of the project. 

 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

That Members: 

 In consideration of the key risks associated with the project highlighted in the 

implications section and the finance, the cash flow forecast and sensitivity analysis 

which forecasts that the project will be investment costs of the project will be 

recoverable through returns, approve; 

o That the Capital Programme be increased by £9.7million covering the full cost 

of the scheme. 

o To underwrite the costs net of external grants of £5.4million to fund the 

project and submit the bid to MHCLG. 

o That the funding requirement will take the form of external borrowing. 

o That the Council‟s external borrowing limit be increased by £5.4million to 

£10.4million  

 

 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 

 

Page 24



 Consultations: Date of Consultation – July 2020 

Officers Consulted – Interim Head of Paid Service, Senior 

Solicitor and Monitoring Officer, Interim S151 Officer, 

Planning and Economy Manager 

 Contact Officer: Economic Development Officer 

   

 

 
 

Page 25



1. PERSONALITY & IDENTITY 2. INFRASTRUCTURE & ASSETS 3. AGENCY & ENTERPRISE 4.COMMUNITY & CONNECTEDNESS 

 

1A.1- Share 
Promote, discuss and adopt a shared vision of 
an ambitious, consolidated offer for the town 
as widely as possible within the community 
1A.2- Include 
Wien the Governance Board for the bid and 
involve different voices in the project. Establish 
clear lines of communication and transparency 
for the community / businesses 
1A.3- Green 
Develop and implement an ambitious zero 
carbon plan that helps redefine the town’s 
identity as a leading green centre 
1B.1- Independents 
Establish a policy for the encouragement and 
promotion of independent shops (including 
Creatives and food / small producers) around 
Mill Street and Cooper Street 
1B.2- Charity 
Treat charity shops as an asset and attraction- a 
marker of Bideford as a caring place- encourage 
consolidation onto the High Street. 
1B.3- Empties 
Establish a strategy for the active use of empty 
shops- incentives, meanwhile use, art / 
creativity, social value 
1C.1- Venue 
Establish a significant cultural venue for music, 
theatre, events and gatherings 
1C.2- Events 
Resource a coordinated programme of events 
in the town, park and quayside- maritime and 
folk festivals, wicked week, sports events, new 
years eve, bike show etc 
1C.3- Animate 
Support activities that animate the town 
centre- street theatre, busking, performance 
1D.1- Brand 
Develop a brand for the town that reflects its 
“personality” based on a shared vision 
1D.2- Promote 
Resource the promotion and marketing of 
Bideford as a place to visit / enjoy 
1D.3- Manage 
Resource and recruit a town / activity manager 
to coordinate delivery of the vision on the 
ground 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

2A.1- Finding the High Street 
Jubilee Square is repurposed as a welcoming hub 
on the quayside, with ASB problems resolved. 
Awnings, festoons, bunting and a “Covent 
Garden” archway entice visitors up the High 
Street and into town 
2A.2- Street scene 
Paint shop fronts (and backs) tastefully / joyfully 
and take care of public spaces (including fixing 
pavements for accessibility) 
2A.3- Public toilets 
Redevelop Bideford’s public toilets as the best in 
the west- not necessarily in the current location 
(replace /reconfigure) 
2B.1- Signage 
Install attractive signage and signposting that 
makes it clear what Bideford has to offer and 
how to find it easily. Make the TIC easy to find. 
2B.2- Access 
Create a network of bus routes, cycle routes, 
electric bikes, boats / water taxi and even e-
trikes and e-scooters to offer easy ways to get to 
and around the town. Enable more tourist 
accommodation in the town. Pedestrianise more 
areas. 
2B.3- Parking 
Improve parking to be well-signed and free for 1-
2 hour stays to encourage locals to use the town 
2C.1- Maritime 
Implement an approach that places Bideford’s 
maritime heritage and quayside / river asset 
centre stage in its visitor offer (pedestrianisation 
/ places to sit / historic ships / river fountain / 
heritage centre) 
2C.2- Architectural 
Restore architecturally significant buildings with 
new purposes 
2D.1- Nature 
Place Bideford at the heart of the Biosphere 
project, improve connectivity and promote usage 
of the Tarka Trail, invest in an eBikes scheme 
2D.2- River 
Ensure the river can be used by many more 
people (i.e. canoes, boat hire, fishing trips) 
2D.3- Outdoors 
Generate events at Victoria Park, plant the 
quayside vibrantly, create a walkway along East-
the-Water river bank (with linkages between the 
two banks) 
 
 

 

3A.1- Skills 
Develop partnerships to ensure skills and education 
opportunities are available- i.e. Petroc operates a 
satellite campus 
3A.2- Progression 
Provide businesses with support and encouragement 
around apprenticeships and progression routes 
3A.3- Markets 
Implement a market strategy so that markets of all 
kinds are supported and established- farmers, food, 
antiques, creative 
3B.1- Start-up 
Provide support for the establishment of micro-
businesses and start-ups 
3B.2- Space 
Create space for a thriving start-up, early stage and 
maker / creative scene of new businesses. Explore 
the potential of live-work and co-working. 
3B.3- Social enterprise 
Ensure social enterprise development support is 
provided and opportunities exist for networking, peer 
and collective help 
3C.1- Collective endeavour 
Create spaces where people can come together to 
make a difference through social action, community 
enterprise, collective ownership 
3C.2- Business network 
Relaunch the Chamber into a thriving and inclusive 
network for all kinds of businesses 
3C.3- Consult and involve 
Commit that local authorities and partnership bodies 
will continue to consult and respond to those who 
live and work in the town 
3D.1- Progress 
Schedule regular surveys to monitor for an increase 
in community agency, pride and positivity over time 
3D.2- Press 
Target that Bideford is featured in the national press 
as a success story for small town regeneration 
3D.3- Success 
Plan for success in the Future High Street Fund as just 
the first of many wins that catalyse change and 
revival for the town. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

4A.1- Services and support 
Support social sector organisations to provide 
joined-up services to those in need at 
appropriate locations 
4A.2- Young people and families 
Provide young people with their own space, 
which is safe, secluded and supported. 
Encourage activities for families to be 
available- city farm, play spaces, climbing 
wall, skatepark 
4A.3- Elderly and vulnerable 
Create facilities that mean regular, accessible 
activities are available for the elderly- 
snooker, games, community cafes etc 
4B.1- Community garden 
Create a community garden / growing space 
to enable people to come together in nature 
4B.2- Theatre / cinema / event space 
Build a community theatre and / or cinema 
that brings people together in shared 
experiences 
4B.3- Community projects and clubs 
Ensure opportunities exist for people to come 
together for social good- volunteering 
opportunities, community and sports clubs 
4C.1- Multi-use 
Establish and manage an indoor / outdoor 
multi-use space that is used by a wide range 
of organisations and activities- focus on social 
connectivity. 
4C.2- Eating together 
Create opportunities for people to share 
meals together- thriving restaurants, 
community café / kitchen, food and pop-up 
hub, continental bar culture 
4C.3- Inclusive 
Create public spaces that are actively 
inclusive, encouraging openness and 
connectivity, countering the risk of division 

 

P
age 26



The Commercial Brief – Isaac’s Yard 
• “There is demand for commercial space in the local market [Torridge] but it is focussed on the smaller end of the spectrum.” 

(Torrington Employment Space Analysis, 2019) 

• “In considering the availability of new property we should consider development viability…  Increases in development costs 
means market pricing has to move or development is unprofitable.” (Torrington Employment Space Analysis, 2019) 

Key demographic rationale 

• 2019- Torridge 6th lowest average pay in UK 

• In Torridge 40.5% of workers (51.3% female workers) earned under Living Wage (22.8% national average) 

• 3767th on Indices of Multiple Deprivation (Bideford North), 3030th  on Employment Score 

• Low cost, flexible and vibrant spaces highlighted by Powwownow Flexible Working study (2017) as crucial for 
18-24 demographic 

• 19.6% of the working population in Torridge are self-employed, against 12.5% in the South West and 10.7% 
across GB 

• 34% of the working population travel to work outside of the district (with huge climate and wellbeing 
implications) 

 

Bideford Commercial Space Overview 

• 72% of demand for commercial space in Torridge is focused on Bideford 

• There is a lack of quality development and the offer in town is poor, with older, above retail accommodation 

• In 2019,  out of 3600 businesses in the district, 91.4% were micro sized,   out of 4000 separate business units, 
88.6% were micro sized 

• The concentration of business was focused in the wholesale, retail, human health, social wellbeing and 
accommodation/food sectors. 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Commercial Agent’s Feedback 

• There is a strong demand for Start-Up and Entrepreneurial space at a reasonable costs without the need for a 
long term commitment and with flexibility,  but there is a lack of stock 

• Demand exists locally for smaller sizes of accommodation to be delivered 

• The interest in space must meet demand – modern space on flexible terms 
 

Caddsdown Business Support Centre is a direct comparable for out of town space but this is not mirrored by in town 
availability 

• Strong take up of smaller units from 20 sq. metres 

• Voids of only 3 months of units under 1000 sq. ft. 

• 97% occupancy 
 
 

P
age 27



The Commercial Brief – Isaac’s Yard 
Accommodation Offer 

• Providing in-town, professional facilities for meetings and training 

• Increased desire post Covid-19 to work from home but balanced with a need for social / professional contact 

• Service availability and support 

• High speed broadband- gigabit fibre 

• Parking provision- easy access to town centre car parks, permit provision available 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

Market for Shared Workspace 

• Start-Ups (including graduate) 

• Home working, movement away from the kitchen table 

• Digital / Creatives sector 

• Non-place dependent employees who can now work from anywhere 

• Businesses moving away from expensive model of fixed-cost office overheads 

• Links with Centre of Technological Innovation and Excellence (CoTIE) at Petroc (8 miles) to provide a bridge to 
specialist equipment and innovation spaces (clean rooms, 3D printers etc). 

 

Additional benefits 

• Education and training links with North Devon+ (business support) Petroc (post-16 learning), Cosmic (Digital 
Skills support). Currently 21.3% of Bideford North residents qualified to NVQ Level 4 or above (29.7% 
nationally, Census 2011) 

• Opportunities to engage with funders (eg Engine Shed, Bristol has a weekly Angel Investor slot) 

• Connections to community and cultural aspects of Isaac’s Yard 

• Increased networking and collaboration opportunities 

• Distinctiveness of location to add professional attraction to potential clients / partners 

• Strong events calendar, linking to IPM key 25 factors 
 

The Commercial Offer of Isaacs Yard 

• Shared workspaces with reception support and admin facilities 

• Grow-on Workspace from 40 sq. metres, supporting B1, A1 to A3 Uses 

• Central support facilities and services 

• Flexible Lease Terms 

• Target EPC A 

• Work units which can expand and contract 

• Potential live-work units 
Rentals from £15 psm 
Service Charges from £10 psm 
Day Rates from £25.00 

 

 

P
age 28



Bideford Residential 
Strategy

P
age 29



Demographic
(Residential Target)

P
age 30



Mosaic group

60 Minutes Drive Time 
from EX39 2QQ

Torridge Bideford South West

Count % Count % Count % Count %

A City Prosperity 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 53,634 1%

B Prestige Positions 3,762 2% 1,145 2% 772 6% 282,924 6%

C Country Living 70,495 32% 13,838 28% 230 2% 640,532 14%

D Rural Reality 56,214 25% 11,635 24% 91 1% 518,348 11%

E Senior Security 19,450 9% 5,322 11% 1,660 13% 488,375 11%

F Suburban Stability 7,335 3% 2,191 4% 945 7% 286,142 6%

G Domestic Success 5,148 2% 756 2% 431 3% 327,984 7%

H Aspiring Homemakers 15,279 7% 3,434 7% 1,914 15% 511,621 11%

I Family Basics 11,052 5% 2,189 4% 1,434 11% 256,978 6%

J Transient Renters 13,414 6% 3,311 7% 2,350 19% 246,855 5%

K Municipal Challenge 887 0% 9 0% 0 0% 66,899 1%

L Vintage Value 8,394 4% 2,136 4% 1,005 8% 257,827 6%

M Modest Traditions 6,433 3% 2,085 4% 1,565 12% 162,182 4%

N Urban Cohesion 141 0% 0 0% 0 0% 80,102 2%

O Rental Hubs 4,589 2% 792 2% 240 2% 335,613 7%

U Unclassified 956  19  0  68,918 -

P
age 31



Visitors to Bideford not likely 
to move

Segmentation 

I: Family Basics: Families with limited resources who have to budget 
to make ends meet (7% of UK households)

Can see why this group was 
missed out as visitors, but 
they have a housing need.

P
age 32



M: MODEST TRADITIONS
Mature homeowners of value homes 
enjoying stable lifestyles (6% of UK 
households)
Modest Traditions are older people living in inexpensive 
homes that they own, often with the mortgage nearly 
paid off. Both incomes and qualifications are modest, 
but most enjoy a reasonable standard of living. They 
are long-settled residents having lived in their 
neighbourhoods for many years.

● M54: Down-to-Earth Owners - Ageing couples 
who have owned their inexpensive home for 
many years while working in routine jobs.

● M55: Offspring Overspill - Lower income 
owners whose adult children are still striving to 
gain independence meaning space is limited.

● M56: Self Supporters - Hard-working mature 
singles who own budget terraces manageable 
within their modest wage.

SHARED OWNERSHIP for ADULT CHILDREN and 
MARKET SALE

J: TRANSIENT RENTERS
Single people privately renting low cost 
homes for the short term (6% of UK 
households)
Transient Renters are single people who pay modest 
rents for low cost homes. Mainly younger people, they 
are highly transient, often living in a property for only a 
short length of time before moving on.

● J40: Make Do & Move On - Yet to settle 
younger singles and couples making interim 
homes in low cost properties.

● J41: Disconnected Youth - Young people 
endeavouring to gain employment footholds 
while renting cheap flats and terraces.

● J42: Midlife Stopgap - Maturing singles in 
employment who are renting short-term 
affordable homes.

● J43: Renting a Room - Transient renters of low 
cost accommodation often within subdivided 
older properties.

RENTAL MOVING TO SHARED OWNERSHIP

I: FAMILY BASICS
Families with limited resources who have to 
budget to make ends meet (7% of UK 
households)
Family Basics are families with children who have 
limited budgets and can struggle to make ends meet. 
Their homes are low cost and are often found in areas 
with fewer employment options.

● I36: Solid Economy - Stable families with 
children renting better quality homes from 
social landlords.

● I37: Budget Generations - Families supporting 
both adult and younger children where 
expenditure can exceed income.

● I38: Childcare Squeeze - Younger families with 
children who own a budget home and are 
striving to cover all expenses.

● I39: Families with Needs - Families with many 
children living in areas of high deprivation and 
who need support.

SHARED OWNERSHIP

P
age 33



H: ASPIRING HOMEMAKERS
Younger households settling down in housing 
priced within their means (9% of UK households)
Aspiring Homemakers are younger households who have, often, 
only recently set up home. They usually own their homes in 
private suburbs, which they have chosen to fit their budget.

● H30: Primary Ambitions - Forward-thinking younger 
families who sought affordable homes in good suburbs 
which they may now be out-growing.

● H31: Affordable Fringe - Settled families with children 
owning modest, 3-bed semis in areas where there's 
more house for less money.

● H32: First-Rung Futures - Pre-family newcomers who 
have bought value homes with space to grow in 
affordable but pleasant areas.

● H33: Contemporary Starts - Fashion-conscious young 
singles and partners setting up home in developments 
attractive to their peers.

● H34: New Foundations - Occupants of brand new 
homes who are often younger singles or couples with 
children.

● H35: Flying Solo - Bright young singles on starter 
salaries choosing to rent homes in family suburbs.

MARKET SALE/RENT (This is our prime market)

E: SENIOR SECURITY
Elderly people with assets who are enjoying a 
comfortable retirement (8% of UK households)
Senior Security are elderly singles and couples who are still 
living independently in comfortable homes that they own. 
Property equity gives them a reassuring level of financial 
security. This group includes people who have remained in 
family homes after their children have left, and those who 
have chosen to downsize to live among others of similar 
ages and lifestyles.

● E18: Legacy Elders - Time-honoured elders now 
mostly living alone in comfortable suburban homes 
on final salary pensions.

● E19: Bungalow Haven - Peace-seeking seniors 
appreciating the calm of bungalow estates 
designed for the elderly.

● E20: Classic Grandparents - Lifelong couples in 
standard suburban homes enjoying retirement 
through grandchildren and gardening.

● E21: Solo Retirees - Senior singles whose reduced 
incomes are satisfactory in their affordable but 
pleasant owned homes.

MARKET SALE (might attract Adventurous Downsizers)

P
age 34



D: RURAL REALITY
Householders living in inexpensive homes in 
village communities (6% of UK households)
Rural Reality are people who live in rural communities and 
generally own their relatively low cost homes. Their moderate 
incomes come mostly from employment with local firms or from 
running their own small business.

● D14: Satellite Settlers - Mature households living in 
expanding developments around larger villages with 
good transport links.

● D15: Local Focus - Rural families in affordable village 
homes who are reliant on the local economy for jobs.

● D16: Outlying Seniors - Pensioners living in 
inexpensive housing in out of the way locations.

● D17: Far-Flung Outposts - Inter-dependent households 
living in the most remote communities with long travel 
times to larger towns.

COULD ATTRACT AS DOWNSIZERS WHO WANT SOCIAL 
CONNECTIVITY ETC. PERHAPS STRUGGLE TO DRIVE 
NOW

C: COUNTRY LIVING
Well-off owners in rural locations enjoying the 
benefits of country life (6% of UK households)
Country Living are well-off homeowners who live in the 
countryside often beyond easy commuting reach of major 
towns and cities. Some people are landowners or farmers, 
others run small businesses from home, some are retired 
and others commute distances to professional jobs.

● C10: Wealthy Landowners - Prosperous owners of 
country houses including the rural upper class, 
successful farmers and second-home owners.

● C11: Rural Vogue - Country-loving families pursuing 
a rural idyll in comfortable village homes while 
commuting some distance to work.

● C12: Scattered Homesteads - Older households 
appreciating rural calm in stand-alone houses 
within agricultural landscapes.

● C13: Village Retirement - Retirees enjoying 
pleasant village locations with amenities to service 
their social and practical needs.

VISITORS - UNLIKELY TO MOVE, POSSIBLY C13

P
age 35



Bideford Torridge 60 minute drivetime South West

AB 12% 15% 17% 23%

C1 25% 26% 26% 31%

C2 30% 32% 30% 23%

DE 32% 27% 26% 23%

P
age 36



Bideford Torridge 60 minute drivetime South West

Managers, directors and senior officials 9% 11% 11% 11%

Professional occupations 11% 12% 13% 17%

Associate professional and technical occupations 9% 8% 9% 12%

Administrative and secretarial occupations 9% 9% 9% 11%

Skilled trades occupations 17% 21% 19% 13%

Caring, leisure and other service occupations 14% 12% 11% 10%

Sales and customer service occupations 10% 8% 8% 8%

Process, plant and machine operatives 9% 8% 8% 7%

Elementary occupations 12% 12% 12% 11%

P
age 37



Median house price 224,975   

Median gross annual earnings 23,658   

Ratio of median house price (newly built dwellings) to 
median gross annual         9.51   

Lower quartile house price 179,995   

Lower quartile gross annual earnings

    

18,852   

Ratio of lower quartile house price (newly built dwellings) 
to lower quartile gross annual         9.55   

% Income on Rent  Rent price quartile

  25th 50th

Income quartile  575 700

25th percentile 1,571 36.60% 44.56%

50th percentile 1,972 29.17% 35.51%

ONS DATA for 
TORRIDGE

P
age 38



Housing Data

P
age 39



House Prices in 
North Devon
Properties in North Devon had an overall 
average price of £260,314 over the last 
year.

The majority of sales in North Devon 
during the last year were detached 
properties, selling for an average price of 
£342,647. Terraced properties sold for an 
average of £191,636, with semi-detached 
properties fetching £241,256.

Overall, sold prices in North Devon over 
the last year were 3% up on the previous 
year and 5% up on the 2017 peak of 
£247,179.

(Rightmove) (Zoopla)

P
age 40



P
age 41



Current Market

P
age 42



Current Market

P
age 43



Current Market

P
age 44



Historic Market

P
age 45



Historic Market

P
age 46



Historic Market

P
age 47



Historic Market

P
age 48



Historic Market

P
age 49



Historic Market

P
age 50



Residential Brief

P
age 51



RESIDENTIAL BRIEF

Typical Product:

● 90m2/970sqft (flexible 3 bedroom) house with a separate 40m2 GF 
workspace unit (option to co-join)

● 3 storey terraced property, accessed from a communal entrance 
courtyard with first floor terrace and potential roof terrace depending on 
design for the house (2-3 outdoor spaces)

● 15m2 GF entrance/storage/home office/stair 
● Then two floors of 37.5m2 for living and 2 or 3 bedrooms with a roof 

terrace on top and a large balcony to the First floor.
● Simple/no finishes/no fitted joinery (including kitchen), exposed services 

etc to facilitate flexibility and adaptation
● Full height internal doors to improve openness
● External canopy on the sunny side to reduce solar gain/improve usability 

of outdoor space
● Target EPC A

Sales:
Assuming a sales rate £250/sqft (Stantec number)
Out-turn sales value is £242,000 (this is £12,000 above the median for the area)

Rental:
(Agents data) Market rent £800/m (ONS £700/m median 50th percentile)
80% discounted rent £640/m (ONS £575/m median 25th percentile)

Variations:
Smaller Unit cuts back the upper floor to give a roof terrace (78m2 2 bed)
Larger Units adds an additional master suite and roof terrace on top (115m3 4 
bed)

Workspace:
40m2 GF workspace (rented or sold) is omitted from the above values

P
age 52



 
c/o Maynard Johns 

37 Mill Street 
Bideford 
EX39 2JJ 

 
6TH July 2020 

 
Dear Mr Fuller, 
 
SUPPORTING BIDEFORD’S FUTURE HIGH STREET FUND 
 
Bideford Bay Chamber of Commerce are delighted to support the Government backed Future 
High Street Fund.  We see this scheme to regenerate Town Centres as essential for the survival 
of Bideford as the cultural, residential, retail and historical hub of this ancient port.  The bid, 
Isaac’s Yard, is exciting and feasible. 
 
We, as Chamber, have been working alongside Torridge District Council as part of the 
Governance Board from the outset of this project, having recognised the potential it could have 
for the prosperity of, not only the Town but, the area as a whole. 
 
What has developed over the last few months, thanks to the enthusiasm and commitment of 
the board, is a well-planned and exciting project. 
 
It has been clear for many years that Bideford has needed a flagship project to assist in the 
regeneration, and in turn, address the deprivation issues of the town, and indeed the whole of 
Torridge.  The Isaac’s Yard project gives just that.  Now, more than at any time in recent history, 
we need to give reasons for people to come here and spend their money locally and contribute 
to the ongoing recovery of the region. 
 
This is a project capable of being the catalyst to change and to bring greater prosperity for 
businesses and individuals alike and this Chamber is in full support of the bid. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 
Jane Maynard    (elect. sig.) 

 
Jane Maynard 
President 
Bideford Bay Chamber of Commercial 
info@bidefordbaychamber.org 

Page 53



 

 

 

Taw View         

North Walk 

Barnstaple 

Devon 

EX39 1EE 

02 July 2020 
   
Dear Chris Fuller,  

 

Bideford Future High Streets Fund Proposal 

Thank you for sharing your intentions for the Bideford High Streets Fund application. 

Firstly, I am pleased that both Bideford and Barnstaple are both applying for this much needed 

support and are doing it in a complementary, non-competitive and coordinated way both fitting 

with the aims and principles of the UNESCO World Biosphere Reserve that they both sit within. 

The proposal for Bideford is creative and innovative and really does bring the essence of the 

Biosphere into the centre of the town. The facility you are proposing is unique and it will clearly 

single it out from other towns. 

The blend of nurturing business and well-being within the development though the combination 

of green space and re-purposing the garage will boost the towns attractiveness for other 

development and inspire further investment. Further the ambition for carbon neutrality for the 

scheme also sets that standard for development that we should be looking for across the world 

but certainly within the UNESCO designation. 

We will be glad to help this in anyway that we can and wish it all success with the grant application. 

Kind regards 

 

 
Andrew BELL 

Biosphere Reserve Coordinator and Service Manager 

The North Devon UNESCO World Biosphere Service 

  
 

 

Page 54



Document is Restricted

Page 55

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	6 Future High Street Fund
	Appendix A- Onion Collective Theory of Change for Bideford
	Appendix B- Commercial Brief
	Appendix C- Bideford Residential Brief
	Bideford Bay Chamber of Commerce letter of support
	North Devon UNESCO Biosphere Reserve letter of support

	11 Statutory Officer Role

